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Blackmon, Glenn (COM)

From: Blackmon, Glenn (COM)
Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 4:46 PM
To: Usibelli, Tony (COM)
Cc: O'Leary, Meg (COM)
Subject: RE: Stoltze Lumber - addition of WA-eligible indicator

<corrected to say the plant is in Montana> 
 
On January 22, 2013 Commerce issued an advisory opinion that the Stoltze Lumber biomass generating facility in 
Montana was an eligible renewable resource under the Washington Energy Independence Act. 
 
At that time, Stoltze Lumber has not registered the project as a generating unit in WREGIS, and Commerce was not yet 
designating projects as Washington‐eligible in its role as state administrator for WREGIS.  
 
The Stoltze project is now registered in WREGIS, and I added the Washington indicator to its record in WREGIS. As a 
result, RECs created from this project will now carry the Washington‐eligible tag. The basis for this designation is the 
original opinion from January. Stoltze did not submit an new application and was not required to pay an additional 
advisory opinion fee. 
 
Glenn Blackmon 
WA Department of Commerce – State Energy Office 
Olympia, WA  
360 725‐3115 
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December 18, 2012  

 

 

 

Meg O’Leary and Chuck Murray 

State Energy Office 

Washington Department of Commerce 

1011 Plum St SE 

PO Box 42525 

Olympia, WA 98504-2525 

 

 

 

Dear Ms. O’Leary and Mr. Murray, 

 

Please consider the following as response to your inquiry to confirm the fuel source for 

the F.H. Stoltze Land & Lumber Co. biomass fired CHP plant is compliant with RCW 

19.285.030 renewable resource and qualified biomass definitions: 

 Bark, sawdust, shavings and wood chips (mill residuals) that are produced in the 

processing of raw logs into lumber at our Stoltze facility, will be the primary biomass fuel supply. 

Procurement of sawlogs to supply the Stoltze sawmill is certified to the Sustainable Forestry 

Initiative® (SFI®) Fiber Sourcing Standards 2010-2014. The SFI program has 14 principles 

designed to achieve sustainable forestry.  Detailed procurement records are maintained as is 

additional documentation sufficient to meet the rigors of third party certification through SFI. 

Any additional fuel over and above the mill residuals will be procured under the SFI Fiber 

Sourcing process already in place for sawlog procurement.  Please note, we will not utilize any 

fuel from wood treated with chemicals or preservatives and/or municipal waste. 

Historically, +/- 60% of the sawlogs for the Stoltze mill are sourced from private lands. 

+/-30% is sourced from US Forest Service and an additional +/-10% from State of Montana Trust 

lands. In 2011, we purchased a significant percentage or our total sawlog volume from forest land 

third party certified as sustainable through either the American Tree Farm System (ATFS) or SFI. 

This includes roughly 20% sourced from Stoltze company lands which are certified through 

ATFS.  

The Stoltze SFI certified procurement system includes specific and documented measures 

to ensure contractors and landowners receive information on management of Forests of 

Exceptional Conservation Value (FECV’s), forests which could include forest stands with old 

growth characteristics. Old growth forests are neither defined nor identified on private lands in 

Montana. Between wide spread stand replacing fire activity in 1910 and 1929 and widespread 

forest management over the last 100 years, private lands within our sourcing area are generally 

second growth, younger stands exhibiting few if any old growth characteristics. USFS and 



 

Montana State Trust Lands are specifically managed with objectives to conserve and promote old 

growth stand characteristics across their landscapes.  

Stoltze supports and promotes sustainable forest management on all lands and is 

committed to responsible fiber sourcing practices through a process of using certified logging 

professionals, BMP training programs, and educational outreach to landowners and wood 

suppliers on critical wildlife habitat, threatened and endangered species, FECV’s and the 

importance of biodiversity across the landscape. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me with additional questions or request for information. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Chuck Roady 

Vice President and General Manager 

 

 

 

 



 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

UTILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
1300 S. Evergreen Park Dr. S.W., P.O. Box 47250 ● Olympia, Washington 98504-7250 

(360) 664-1160 ● TTY (360) 586-8203 

 

 

 

 

July 27, 2018 

 

 

Mark L. Johnson, Executive Director and Secretary 

Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission 

1300 S. Evergreen Park Dr. SW 

P. O. Box 47250  

Olympia, Washington  98504-7250 

 

RE: Pacific Power & Light Annual Renewable Portfolio Standard Compliance Report 

 Docket UE-160777 

 

Dear Mr. Johnson:   

 

In Order 01 of the above mentioned docket, the Commission determined that Pacific Power and 

Light (Pacific Power or Company) had complied with the 2016 renewable portfolio standard 

(RPS) target calculation and reporting requirements. The Commission ordered Pacific Power to 

file a report no later than June 1, 2018, that listed the certificate numbers for every renewable 

energy credit (REC) that the Company retired in the Western Renewable Energy Generation 

Information System (WREGIS), along with details about which certificates were used for its 

voluntary renewable energy programs for 2016. 

 

Staff Analysis of Pacific Power’s 2016 Final RPS Compliance Report 

 

In its July 27, 2016, revised filing, Pacific Power correctly calculated its 2016 RPS target of 

370,166 MWh, and identified a mix of wind- and incremental hydro-based RECs from 2015 and 

2016 that it planned to use to meet this target. Table 1 below displays the mix of resources that 

Pacific Power planned to deploy to meet the target. 

 

 

Table 1: Pacific Power’s 2016 Renewable Resource Target and Compliance Plan 
 

2016 Target 

(MWh) 

Incremental Hydro 

(MWh) 

2015 

Generation 

and RECs 

2016 

Generation 

and RECs 

Total Compliance 

Resources (MWh) 

370,166 1,903 215,961 152,302 370,166 
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On May 29, 2018, Pacific Power filed its final RPS compliance report for 2016. Commission 

staff (Staff) has reviewed the compliance report and determined that Pacific Power has met its 

2016 RPS target. Table 2 below details the resources Pacific Power used to meet the target. 

 
Table 2: Summary of 2016 Pacific Power RCW 19.285.040 Compliance 

 

Facility Name Facility Type 
Vintage 
Year 2015 

Vintage 
Year 2016 Total 

Pavant  Solar 316  316 

Goodnoe Hills Wind 5,383 18,292 23,675 

Leaning Juniper I Wind 15,187 16,552 31,739 

Marengo Wind 24,062 29,087 53,149 

Marengo II Wind 11,102 13,918 25,020 

Campbell Hill Wind 23,680 27,276 50,956 

Dunlap I Wind 27,359 31,741 59,100 

Glenrock I Wind 23,306 11,571 34,877 

Rolling Hills Wind 5,468  5,468 

Top of the World Wind 45,911  45,911 

Bennett Creek Wind Farm Wind 8,656  8,656 

Hot Springs Wind Farm Wind 8,028  8,028 

Nine Canyon Wind Project Wind 2,500  2,500 

Lower Snake River – Phalen 

Gulch Wind 1,300  1,300 

Elkhorn Valley Wind Farm Wind 4,468  4,468 

Fighting Creek LFGTE Plant Biogas 730  730 

Hidden Hollow Energy Biogas 12,501  12,501 

JC Boyle 

Incremental 

Hydro  235 235 

Lemolo 1 

Incremental 

Hydro  1,113 1,113 

Lemolo 2 

Incremental 

Hydro  95 95 

Prospect 2 

Incremental 

Hydro  329 329 

TOTAL  219,957 150,209 370,166 
 

As part of its 2016 RPS compliance, Pacific Power has retired unbundled RECs purchased from 

a variety of plants. A portion of these RECs (20,515) were produced from solar, wind, and 

biogas facilities located either in the Pacific Northwest or in another state in which Pacific Power 

serves retail customers: Pavant, Nine Canyon, Fighting Creek, Hidden Hollow, and Elkhorn 

Valley. The Department of Commerce has determined that three of these facilities (Nine Canyon, 
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Fighting Creek, and Elkhorn Valley) are eligible renewable resources, and has marked them as 

eligible in WREGIS. Pavant—a solar facility in Utah—and Hidden Hollow—a biogas plant in 

Idaho—are registered as renewable resources in WREGIS, though the Department of Commerce 

has not marked them as eligible to use for RPS compliance in Washington. 

 

Staff has reviewed information on these plants, believes they meet the requirements as eligible 

renewable resources under the EIA, and recommends the Commission approve Pacific Power’s 

use of RECs acquired from them to fulfill its RPS compliance obligations. 

 

Conclusion 

 

For 2016, Pacific Power has fully complied with the reporting requirements contained in Order 

01, entered August 12, 2016. The Commission should approve the eligibility of Pavant, Nine 

Canyon, Fighting Creek, Hidden Hollow, and Elkhorn Valley and the use of RECs acquired from 

these resources for RPS compliance. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Andrew Rector 

Regulatory Analyst 
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